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1862 England – 1926 WA 

 
 

 
 

  
 

Walter Toy, Sr. - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093192650/media/97bcee2e-c7e4-40bc-a0d1-4d1f307a04ce 



2 
 

 
Walter Toy, Sr. – from Find A Grave 14102702 

 
 

 
Walter Toy, Sr., - courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Walter Toy in the Army, recognizable as the man standing at far left, on the ground – courtesy of 

Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Walter Toy Sr., in uniform, with dog sketch – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Dated 1919 – Walter Toy Sr. – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Walter Toy Sr. (seated at left) – are these his sons? – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Obituary of Walter Toy Sr. – “Tacoma (WA) News Tribune” Monday 25 Oct 1926 p 16 
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Obituary of Walter Toy Sr. - "Chehalis (WA) Bee-Nugget" Friday 29 Oct 1926 p 2 

 

 
Obituary of Walter Toy Sr. - “Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 24 Oct 1926 p 12 
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Unsourced obituary – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 

 
Below excerpt from Marilyn C. Gahm’s “The Sinking of the Tuscania” page 63: 
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While some have graduated from, or attended, Harvard, Yale, Cornell, Princeton, Stanford, Texas 
A&M, Johns Hopkins University, the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Notre Dame, the 
universities of Michigan, Minnesota, Tennessee, Washington and of other states, others had only a 
few years of education. Many signed only “their mark” – an “X” – to their draft registration, being 
illiterate and unable to write their names. African-American soldiers, not yet integrated into the 
Army, fight in separate units and are not aboard. Some soldiers are teenagers; and then there is 56-
year-old private Walter Toy. 

 
Walter Toy (left), born in Cornwall, England, in 1862 [or 
so], had immigrated to the United States via an informal 
process, as his granddaughter Meredith Geroldine Toy 
recalled. “Walter walked away from a British Merchant 
Marine ship tied up in Astoria, Oregon.“ Toy was past 
draft age, but he shaved his head and facial hair to look 
younger and convince military officials he was fit for 
service. He left his wife behind in Washington state to 
care for their nine children. 
 
From A to Z – from Olaf Sverre Aamodt of Minnesota, 
who will survive, attain a doctorate and teach university-
level agriculture courses, to Arthur Rudolph Zybach of 
Texas, who will die in France seven days before the 
Armistice - the men board the Tuscania on its final 
voyage. 

 
 



11 
 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C3MH-VWW2-
X?cc=2968245&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AWQ16-7BW2 

 
 

 
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QS7-994X-

DTGS?cc=1916249&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQV1Z-FBWZ 
 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QS7-994X-DTGS?cc=1916249&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQV1Z-FBWZ
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QS7-994X-DTGS?cc=1916249&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQV1Z-FBWZ
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Walter Toy – citizenship papers – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Letter from Walter to wife Sarah – written from the Recruit Barracks, Vancouver WA, 13 Dec 1917 -  

courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Discharge papers – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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Courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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WA military record, WWI – courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA  

 
In the Service  
The Great World War 
Honor Roll 
Southwest Washington 
Printed 1920-21 
 
Page 98  
 
Walter Toy, Jr. (son) of Winlock, Washington, enlisted in the service May 1, 1917, at Vancouver 
Barracks. He was assigned to Headquarters Co. 20th Calvary, and sent to Fort McDowell, 
California. He was transferred from there to Fort Riley, Kansas, and made Farrier. He remained 
in the service until February 23, 1919, when he received his discharge at Houston, Texas. 
 
Joseph Toy, of Winlock, Washington, enlisted in the service October 3, 1917, at Camp Lewis. 
He was assigned to the Infantry, and put in the band. He remained in the service until February 
24, 1919, when he received his discharge at Camp Lewis. His rating at the time of his discharge 
was 3rd Class Musician. 
 
J. D. Custer, of Winlock, Washington, entered the service September 19, 1918, at Victoria, B. C. 
He was assigned to the 2nd Depot Brigade and sent to Siberia. He sailed December 26, 1918, 
on the Prostesteles, out of Victoria. He fought at Kopec Hill, and was in the service nine months, 
when he sailed for home on the Empress of Russia, May 18, 1919.  
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Fred Warren Steinhart, of Winlock, Washington, entered the service September 15, 1918, at 
Vancouver Barracks. He was assigned to the 3rd Co., Spruce Division. He served until 
December 12, 1918, when he received his discharge at Vancouver.  
 

War records of family – son Walter Toy Jr. & Joseph Toy, son-in-laws James Daniel Custer (married 
to daughter Edith Toy) & Fred Warren Steinhart (married to daughter Edna Toy) – courtesy of Steven 

Schwartz of Renton WA 
 

The Life of a 19th Century 

Ganges Boy 
 
Walter Toy was born on the 1st  January 1863 in Budock, only a few miles from 
the port of Falmouth in Cornwall. His father was a farm labourer, his mother a 
laundress and he was the fourth of seven children and the second son. After 
he left school, Walter would only have had about three choices of what to do 
with his life – to follow his father and work on the land, the hard grind of 
working in the tin mines, or going to sea. His elder brother by two years, 
Charles, had already entered the Royal Navy and was a Signalman 2nd Class 
on H.M.S. “Warrior”. No doubt Walter worked with his father for a time, but 
with the example of his brother, and being of age to join the Navy as a Boy, he 
knew what he wanted to do. 
 
The local papers carried advertisements asking boys of 15 to 16 ½ years of 
age to volunteer for the Royal Navy and they should apply to the Commanding 
Officer of H.M.S. “Ganges”, a boys training ship, then moored in St Just Pool 
at Mylor, a short distance from Falmouth. Walter would have travelled to 
Mylor, via Penryn, and on applying would have undergone a medical 
examination and proved that he could read and write before being accepted. 
A few years earlier, a report by the staff surgeon for training ships stated that 
about a quarter of the boys coming forward were rejected for various reasons, 
the majority because of poor health, others because they were unable to pass 
the educational test. Walter had no trouble on this account and on the 21st 
September 1878, entered the Royal Navy as a Boy 2nd Class onboard H.M.S. 
“Ganges”, having signed that he would serve for 10 years from the 2nd January 
1881 when he would be 18 years old. He was described on his Service 
Document as being 5ft. 1in. with brown hair, blue eyes and a fresh 
complexion. 
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He now entered a life so completely different to that he had known before. 
Subjected to the confines of the ship most of the time, surrounded by 
hundreds of lads of similar age, being instructed in seamanship and gunnery 
and even going back to the schoolroom. Over all there was a strict discipline 
and swift punishment, but he would be taught to take care of himself and was 
even paid 6d. a week.  Different yes, but was it any worse than the life he had 
led up until then? His father, a farm labourer with a wife and six children to 
provide for, his mother and eldest sister taking in washing and he himself 
probably working from dawn to dusk in the fields and then probably having to 
sleep with the other children. On the “Ganges”, he was fed regularly, more 
clothes than he had ever had before in his life and had his own hammock to 
sleep in. Life was hard, but he thrived on it. His first report in December 1878 
was a ‘Very Good’, he was then rated Boy 1st Class on the 17th December 1879 
and received an ‘Excellent’ report on the 31st March 1880. Being a local boy, 
he had no trouble travelling home for the three long leaves they were granted 
annually, perhaps he even made it on Sundays, whatever, Walter Toy enjoyed 
and made the most of his training aboard the “Ganges”. He finally left the ship 
on 29th May 1880 and was sent to the “Impregnable”, another boys training 
ship stationed in Devonport to await a draft to a Fleet ship. 
 
He joined H.M.S. “Wye” on the 12th August for just 5 weeks to be transported 
to his first ship proper H.M.S. “Garnet”, a single screw ship of 2,154 tons, 3 
masted, carrying a full suit of sails and which mounted 12 – 64pdr. muzzle 
loaded guns. She was the guardship on the South American Station and whilst 
on board her Walter was rated Ordinary Seaman 2nd Class on 1st January 1881, 
his 18th birthday, and then O.D. on the 29th November that year. Walter’s birth 
certificate indicates January 2nd but a possible mistake in the Naval papers 
showing his birth as the 1st allowed him to celebrate that day for the rest of his 
life. By the 7th September of the following year he was back in Devonport and 
on board the “Royal Adelaide”, a receiving and accommodation ship. Whilst 
in the “Garnet” his reports were ‘Good’ throughout and he was obviously 
carrying out his duties as required. 
 
His next draft, on the 30th December, was to H.M.S.“Thalia”, a screw corvette 
that was launched in 1869, the last vessel to be built in the Woolwich Yard on 
the River Thames. Once again he was only on board for a short period, 2 ½ 
months, being transported again to his next ship which was in the Far East, on 
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the 1st February 1883 he was rated Able Seaman and at 20 years of age 
entitled to draw his rum ration. His conduct whilst aboard her was described 
as ‘Very Good’.  He was transferred to H.M.S. “Curacoa”, a battleship built in 
1874, on the 17th March 1883. 
 
Up to this point Walter appears to have been a competent and obedient 
seaman, being rated on due dates and of good character, but now things 
started to go all wrong for him. No clue is given on his papers as to why but on 
the 31st July he was put in the cells for 14 days and then just 9 weeks later, on 
the 8th October 1883, is sentenced to 12 months imprisonment with hard 
labour. We can only speculate what had happened. Had he fallen foul of 
some senior rate or officer on the “Curacoa” or had he become addicted to 
his rum, which he had not long received, and in a drunken state struck his 
superior officer? We can’t tell, but he was transferred to H.M.S. “Audacious” 
the same day for a 9 week transport back to the UK and discharged  to the 
Victor Emanuel Prison. Needless to say, he received a Bad report from the 
Captain of the “Curacoa” 
 
He had three weeks remitted from his sentence, so he was released and 
discharged to the “Duke of Wellington”, a receiving and accommodation ship 
alongside in Portsmouth on the 17th September. His next draft was on the 14th 
October to H.M.S. “Sultan”, a battleship built in 1870 and of some 9,500 tons. 
Her main armaments of 8 10-inch guns were contained in an armoured 
central battery on each beam; the vices and virtues of gun turrets had yet to 
be fully explored. It was not long however, before Walter was in trouble again, 
spending 7 days in cells from the 27th February 1885, 14 days cells from 5th 
April and another 14 days on the 8th September. He was of course, on 2nd 
Class for Conduct after his spell in prison, and this leads one to wonder 
whether drink was his problem, and that he made the most of his one day per 
month of statuary leave. He was back in Portsmouth and on board the ”Duke 
of Wellington” on the 23rd January 1886. each of  
 
It was around this time that the conditions onboard the depot ships, and the 
corruption practised by the senior rates and ships police, was causing much 
discontent and insubordination among the ratings awaiting fleet service. For 
instance, the Master-at-Arms demanded 10 shillings for a 7-day leave pass, 
the Captain of the Hold expected to be dropped half a crown for stowing a 
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ratings kit and the Clothing Crusher for the matter of 2 shillings would sign a 
uniform kit list. The drafting masters-at arms could, for the deposit of 10 
shillings arrange a draft ashore for married men, who would remain in that 
billet providing they could continue paying for the privilege. This was at a time 
when an A.B’s pay was only 1s 7d per day, it was no wonder that there was 
discontent onboard. This lead the commander-in-chief to eventually order an 
investigation and to tighten up the discipline on the ship, so a Captain Robert 
Woodward, an officer of the old school whose unorthodox methods of dealing 
with recalcitrant seamen were well known, was appointed to the ship. He 
speedily obtained approval from the Admiralty to discharge ashore a number 
of ‘insubordinate and worthless characters’ as ‘objectionable’. 
 
Walter meanwhile, had only been on board three weeks when he was 
sentenced to 90 days hard labour on the 14th February for some unknown 
offence. He was then considered to be one of Woodwards ‘characters’ and 
discharged from the Royal Navy as ‘objectionable’ on the 18th February. He 
was detained on board the “Duke” until the 28th February when he was then 
transferred to Lewes Naval Prison in Sussex to serve out the remainder of his 
sentence. 
 
After his release some time in May 1886, Walter was finished with the Royal 
Navy but not yet with the sea. He obtained berths in merchant ships and for 
the next two years sailed to ports in South America and in the Far East. He 
finally left the sea when he jumped ship sometime in October 1888 in Astoria, 
Oregon on the West Coast of America, and moving north and inland settled in 
an area called Ainslie near Winlock, Lewis County in Washington. The 
following year, he married Sarah Snow on 12th November and they moved into 
Winlock where Walter set up a successful business as a blacksmith. Sarah’s 
ancestors could be traced back to a Nicolas Snow who embarked in the 
”Anne” in 1623 and married a passenger who went over in the “Mayflower”. 
Walter and Sarah lived in Winlock all their married life and had nine children, 
eight surviving to adulthood and he later became a citizen of the United States 
on the 2nd July 1900. 
 
Walter’s adventures were not yet finished. The United States entered the 
Great War against Germany on the 6th April 1917 and although he was then 54 
years old  managed to convince the recruiting officers, after five attempts, 
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that he was young enough to serve. He enlisted on the 13th December and 
was assigned to the 16th Company 20th Engineers of the United States Army. 
Training must have been the minimum because on the 24th January 1918 he is 
on a British troopship S.S “Tuscania” with 2,300 other men sailing from 
Hoboken, New Jersey for Le Harve in France. The ship was to travel in convoy 
via Halifax with two destroyers as escort and after 12 days at sea were met by 
a further 8 British destroyers west of Ireland. 
 
The convoy’s course was to the north of Ireland and to pass between Rathlin 
Island, 3 miles off the North Irish coast and the Mull of Kintrye, the North 
Channel at this point being approximately 12 ½ miles wide, into the Irish Sea. 
As the “Tuscania” passed by Rathlin Island about 7 miles off, she was struck 
by one of the two torpedoes fired by U-Boat 77, commanded by Lt. Cmr. W. 
Meyer, at 1741 on the 5th February. The ship carried sufficient life saving 
capacity but with only 250 crew the soldiers had to do the best they could, 
some managed to get boats away and landed on Rathlin, others on Kintrye 
and some on the Isle of Islay away to the north. The majority however, were 
picked up by the destroyers coming alongside the ship and embarking them 
straight inboard. Of the 2,550 souls onboard the ship only 116 people were 
lost, mainly because she took just over 5 hours to sink. It is not known how 
Walter escaped, but no doubt he used his early training as a Ganges Boy to 
assist himself and others to survive as his granddaughter, Meredith, 
remembers stories of him describing how he ”helped many a boy to safety”. 
 
After the rescue, he went on to serve in France until 14th May 1919 when he 
sailed for home and his subsequent discharge from the Army on the 12th June. 
He returned to Winlock and by 1921 was the Commander of the Buford 
Rockafellow Post of the American Legion. 
 
Walter died of a cerebral haemorrhage on 22nd October 1926, aged 64, he was 
buried with full military honours, a firing party with a last salute and a bugler 
sounding the Last Post. Here was a Ganges Boy of the 19th century, being 
honoured for his services to another nation in the 20th century. 
 
 
Written by Bob Harwood (47) with the kind permission of, and with details supplied by Mrs. Jeanne 

Rinear, of Fairbanks, Alaska – the great granddaughter of Walter Toy. 
Courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
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DRAFT of Mom Unfinished  
 
Meredith Geroldine Toy 
 
The State of California, County of Alameda, City of Berkeley, Temple Hospital birth certificate 
spells name Meridith Gearldine Toy. On May 19, 1922 Meredith was born at 7:30 p. m. and the 
attending physician was Dr. Robert Hector. Walter Toy, age 29 was a Vocational Student at the 
California Arts and Crafts School at the time. His wife, Olga Emilja Isaacson, age 21 was listed 
as a housewife. Two months later the family drove up to the Winlock, Washington area camping 
one night in the Oregon mountains along the way. The arrived at the Isaacson family farm in 
Winlock, RFD 1 Box 240. The new Toy family stayed in both Winlock and Aberdeen 
Washington. In 1923 Gloria June Toy was born.  The family of four stayed off and on with Olga’s 
parents or Olga’s siblings, brothers, Arvid, Arthur, or Paul and sisters Elaine, Sophie, Agnes, Ina 
and Elsie.  
 
Olga's parents and Walter's parents had both lived in the Winlock area for a number of years. 
Walter's parents were first to come in the late 1880's. Walter's parents were Walter Toy and 
Sarah E. Snow. They had met after October 1888 when Walter walked away from a British 
Merchant Marine ship tied up in Astoria, Oregon. Walter's family for hundreds of years was from 
the Cornwall, England area around Falmouth. He was born to Walter and Sally Toy January 2, 
1863 at Budock Water, very near Falmouth. The birth certificate indicates his father Walter was 
an Agriculture Laborer and mother Sally Cosier was a Laundress. The first to immigrate on the 
Toy side was Walter, who had joined the British Navy around 1878 and served until 1886. He 
left the Navy and joined the merchant marines. 
 
Walter and Sarah's marriage certificate is dated November 12, 1889. They were married in the 
house of Frank Miller. N. A. Westover, Justice of the Peace, performed the ceremony. 
Witnesses were Frank Miller and Sam H. Westover. Both the bride and the groom signed the 
certificate. In the local newspaper published in Centralia, The Bee, the marriage was reported 
with both Walter and Sarah identified as being from Ainslie, Lewis County, Washington 
Territory. The marriage license would have been filed in the county seat at that time, Chehalis, 
Lewis County, Washington. The marriage certificates form had Territory printed on its place of 
marriage. The word Territory was crossed out and State written in by the Justice of the Peace. 
Washington had become a state the day before on November 11, 1889.  
 
Sarah was the first child of Joseph and Margaret Snow born December 24, 1867. They had 
moved to Washington Territory from Morgan County Tennessee some time previous to 1888 
with their seven children. Joseph's family had emigrated from England in 1623. Nicholas Snow 
arrived in Plymouth on the Anne. He married Constance Hopkins who had arrived on the 
Mayflower as a young girl. Margaret's family came from either Normandy or Switzerland. Three 
brothers of the Laymance family arrived in Philadelphia in the middle 1740's. As migrations 
through the years went south then west the Snow and the Laymance families were in Oakdale, 
also called Hunnicutt, Tenneessee in the early 1800's. After Joseph's stint in the Union 1st 
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Tennessee Volunteer Regiment in the Civil War he returned home and married Margaret on 
January 15, 1867 in Hunnicutt.  
 
When they left Tennessee in the late 1880's they had first been in Napavine, Washington 
Territory, which is seven miles southeast of Chehalis on the Newaukum River. Napavine is an 
Indian name, which means small prairie, but according to Indian pronunciation, the name should 
be spelled Napavoon. In 1873, Northern Pacific Railway officials accepted the Napavine name 
for their station. By 1889 though the Snow family were in Ainsley. The post office of Ainslie was 
a mile south of Winlock on Olequa Creek on what were once the railroad lines of the Union 
Pacific Railroad in rural Lewis County. The post office was established by David G. Ainslie on 
February 11, 1887, and was closed on June 24, 1897. Washington Place Name author, 
Ramsey, writes of the community ".... in the early nineties Ainslie Lumber Company was one of 
the largest mills between Portland and Tacoma..." 
 
Joseph and Margaret had applied for their homestead July 2, 1891. They chose Section 12 of 
Township 11 North, 3 West of the Willamette Meridian. This area is south and west of the town 
of Winlock. They were on a hilly area running long and narrow north to south. The applicant to 
the other quarter of the Section also running long and narrow north to south was Elijah C. Carns 
who had applied April 20, 1891. The other two quarters of Section 12 were squared quarters to 
the east of Snow and Carns. William Cunningham on the northeast and James H. McGill on the 
southeast applied for these two quarters on May 9, 1888.  Mr. McGill patented his land April 3, 
1891 patent number 3887. Mr. Carns patented his land December 11, 1891 patent number 
4170. Mr. Snow patented his land October 26, 1892 patent number 2649. Mr. Cunningham 
patented his land February 10, 1894 patent number 2866.  At some point a Snow Cemetery is 
designated on the Snow homestead.  
 
Olga's parents had emigrated from Finland. Edward Isaacson had arrived in New York in 
February 1888. He was born July 7, 1867 in Merikarvia, Turku Pori Province, Finland. Upon 
arrival he changed his name from Iisak Edvard Mäkelä first to Edward Isakson and finally to 
Edward Isaacson. His father's name was Isaac and his mother's name was Maija. Elin 
Anteroinen was born in Oulu, Oulu Province, Finland August 18, 1872 to Brita and Pekka 
Anteroinen. She had emigrated from Finland to visit one of her sister's in Minnesota in 1893. 
The two met at the sister's farm and were married on in Cloquet, Carlton County, on July 26th 
1894.  
 
Olga was their 4th child born in Knife Falls Township, Carlton County. In the 1900 Census taken 
in Minnesota Edward is listed as not naturalized and working on the highway. He most certainly 
also worked in the numerous sawmills that were in the area as well. Olga is not listed as the 
Census was taken in June of 1900, before her birth. Edward had declared his intent to become 
a citizen on the 6th of April 1891. He applied for citizenship on April 6, 1899 and renounced 
forever all allegiance and Fidelity of the Czar of Russia.  
 
According to the births of their thirteen children the Isaacsons moved to Washington State 
between 1904 and 1905. According to granddaughter Meredith Toy, Elin, commonly spelled as 
Ellen, traveled with a maid on the Great Northern Train when they moved with their then seven 
children. First they lived in Aberdeen, Grays Harbor County where two more children were born 
then by 1908 they were in Winlock, Lewis County. Three more children were born in Winlock, 
the last not surviving.  
 
Walter Toy was born in Winlock May 8th in 1893 the second child of Walter and Sarah Toy. 
Walter and Sarah had seven children. Winlock is located 19 miles southwest of Chehalis. 
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Ramsey indicated it was originally named Grand Prairie when the first post office was 
established on July 25, 1861. According to Nix, C. C. Pagget re-named it Winlock in 1874, in 
honor of Senator Winlock W. Miller, a close friend of Isaac I. Stevens, first governor of 
Washington. Winlock was incorporated in 1883. It is now a small farming community and fourth 
largest town in Lewis County. Erickson wrote it was once the site of the first big inland railroad 
sawmill in the Pacific Northwest. The Ainslie Lumber Co. operated a sawmill, store, and hotel 4 
miles south of Winlock from 1884 to 1893. 
 
One remembrance Meredith had of her father when he was young was when he ran away. 
Walter went the four miles south and then west some more to his grandparents, Joseph and 
Margaret Snow's homestead. He indicated he did not like the drinking that his father was doing 
and would rather live with the Snow's. Walter's father was a blacksmith in Winlock and no doubt 
the days in the Navy had taught him the wilder ways.  
 
By 1917 Walter's father as well as Walter, brother Thomas and brother-in-law Jack Custer 
enlisted in the Army to fight in World War I. The father at this time was 54 years old. He shaved 
all of his head and facial hair in order to look younger.  He convinced the recruiting officers at 
the Vancouver Barracks he was still fit and was assigned to the 16th Engineers. The 16th along 
with other units made up the 6th Battalion. The 6th Battalion's main job would be in support of the 
troops in France. They were called the Forestry Regiment. The Forestry troops would supply 
lumber for dugouts, trenches, and entanglements. They would construct compounds for 
prisoners, and construct all the military facilities that were needed. The make up of the Battalion 
was 25% forestry experts, 25% officers with military training, and 50% sawmill and logging men. 
By January 1, 1918 several hundred men from the Pacific Northwest, and the Great Lakes 
region arrived in Washington D.C. making the 6th Battalion war strength with 750 men. They all 
were transported on the British luxury liner, SS Tuscania toward France. A German submarine 
sank this ship between Ireland and Scotland. Walter Toy survived and returned to Winlock when 
the war ended. The records of Meredith's father Walter have not been received yet, however he 
returned to Winlock as well. 
 
On November 30th 1920 Olga and Walter Toy were married at the Courthouse in Seattle, 
Washington. Both Walter and Olga signed the certificate which had been  officiated by John 
William Hon.  Walter's interest in drawing and painting took them to California where he entered 
the California Arts and Crafts School in Berkeley. Meredith was born in May of 1922 in Berkeley 
but by the 15th of October in 1923 the family was back in Winlock when Gloria June was born.  
 
The girls went to nursery school as Olga worked at the Troy Laundry and Sophie worked in a 
drapery factory using a power sewing machine.  Meridith was actually a year too old but the 
school said that if she would take her naps with the other children that they would accept her.  
She took her naps. It worked as a perfect babysitter during the beginning of the depression. 
Olga was lucky to have a job. 
 
Meredith was school age by 1929 and went to 1st and 2nd grades at Veness School in Winlock. 
Gloria was a year younger and started school in 1930. In 1931 after almost eleven years of 
marriage, Walter and Olga divorced. Olga and her children moved to Seattle and stayed at 
Krinklebacks on Genesee Street. Olga began work at a commercial Dry Cleaning and 
Laundromat establishment. They spent some time in the Capitol Hill area of Seattle with Olga’s 
sister Elaine, her husband Ralph and their two sons. In 1932 Olga married Henry George 
Sinning, known mostly as Harry, at Elaine’s home.  The family of four went to live at Lake 
Washington near Seward Park at 42nd East Lee.  
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Meridith and Gloria went to John J. McGilvra Grade School, Meridith in 4th and 5th grades. 
McGilvra Elementary School is located at 1617 38th Ave. E. near Lake Washington in Madison 
Park it is still open as of 1999. After two years the Sinning family moved to Queen Ann Hill area 
of Seattle.  They lived in a house at 21 West Raye Street. Meridith was able to start piano 
lessons on her own piano there.  She went to 6th, 7th and 8th grade at the North Queen Anne 
Grade School. North Queen Anne School was closed in 1981. It is still owned by the District and 
is located on Queen Anne at 2919 1st Avenue West.  Her freshman and sophomore years of 
High School were in Queen Ann High School. Queen Anne High School at 215 Galer St. was 
also closed in 1981. It became the Queen Anne Apartments in 1987. During her sophomore 
year, 1937, Meridith worked as a live in helper for an insurance company employee, Mrs. Zulke.  
Meridith cared for a young girl, cooked, cleaned, ironed and washed clothes.  She was also still 
attending school and keeping her grades up, so was a pretty busy girl.  The pay was $10.00 a 
month! The last two years of high school, 1939 and 1940 were spent at Franklin High School as 
the family had moved to Bennett Street.  
 
From June of 1940 to August of 1942 Meridith worked for Carl F. Miller & Co, Inc. on 6th South 
in Seattle as an office worker and was living at 113 West 76th Street.  February 22, 1941 she 
went skiing with friends on Mt. Rainier.  There she met Leif R. Ostnes.  He was a 22 year old, 
fun loving, pilot, assistant superintendent for his family’s gold mine in Alaska and student at the 
University of Washington.  Their time to build a friendship was short as he was returning to the 
Fortuna Ledge gold mine to work the summer and fall. They went on their first date November 
28, 1941 when Leif returned from Alaska. On March 22, 1942 Meridith received an engagement 
ring from Leif at the Isaacson family farm in Winlock.  May 16, 1942 they were married at the 
Emanuel Lutheran Church in Seattle, Washington. 
 
October 1942- December 1942 Stayed at Hardin Hotel in Pecos, Texas. Meridith arrived by train 
in October 1942.  Leif graduate December 6, 1942. 
 
December 1942 – February 1943 in Alpine, Texas, they stayed with a family at a Bed and 
Breakfast.  They had the maid’s room. Leif graduate from Army Corp Cadet school as 1st Lt. 
February 6, 1943. Lars R. Ostnes was there to pin wings on son. BBQ Texas Style afterwards. 
 
December 1942 September 1943 Stayed at Motel then a house in Hobbs, New Mexico. Dianne 
Marie Ostnes was born March 15, 1943 at the Clinic Hospital. Dr. Geis was the attending 
physician. Pat McConnel and Leif were with her. Leif graduated B-17 transition April 15, 1943.  
He was instructor until September 6, 1943 then October 1943. Then Leif was transferred to 
Euphrata, Washington.  Meridith drove back to Seattle with Dianne.  By November 1943 Leif 
was transferred to Ardmore, Oklahoma. Meridith and Dianne drive to Oklahoma on November 
28, 1943.  Mary Hansberry drove down too. Residence was at Mr. and Mrs. McKinny’s house on 
A Street. McKinney’s had a small apartment attached to their home. On June 28, 1944 Meridith 
and Dianne left Ardmore by train to travel back to Seattle.  During the trip they were bumped off 
the train in Denver because the train was needed for troop transport. Pat McConnel came from 
Laramie to spend the day with them. Meridith and Dianne finally arrived in Seattle July 3, 1944.  
Leif called to say that he would be getting a crew. 
 
September 2, 1944 Meridith and Dianne moved to Winlock as Leif was to be assigned to 
England. December 15, 1944 Carol Elise Ostnes was born at Saint Helen’s Hospital in 
Chehalis, Washington. Dr. Mathis was the attending physician. Leif hitchhiked to be there for 
her birth.  Olga had come down from Seattle to be with Meridith and the girls. Leif, his crew and 
their B-17 had been working together since October in El Paso, Texas.  Leif’s whole Wing had 
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been sent to Lincoln, Nebraska as a final base before leaving for Europe. Leif left for England 
January 1945. 
Leif had 18 missions over the war zones of Europe. After WWII European Theater’s 
unconditional surrender of the Axis powers, Leif was on duty to transfer French citizens back 
from Casablanca, Morocco to France. He returned to the USA via New York November 10, 
1945. Leif was discharged at Ft. Lewis, Washington in December 1945.  Meridith and Leif took a 
two-week vacation to Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. 
 
In April Leif and Meridith had decided to move to Alaska.  Leif flew to Fairbanks in April of 1945. 
He did a quick survey of the properties available for purchase and bought a house in an area of 
Fairbanks called Garden Island.  #8 Brandt Street was a house with a full basement, coal heat, 
water, electricity, large living room, a U shaped kitchen, two bedrooms upstairs and one bath. 
Meridith and the girls flew in on Pan Am on May 16, 1946.  Leif had already planted a garden 
and was planning to work at the Willow Creek mine for the summer. Leif left in early June and 
returned in on November 3, 1946. When he came home there was a new addition to the family. 
Lawrence Robert Ostnes was born August 15, 1946 in St. Joseph’s Hospital with Dr. Schiable 
as the attending physician. Meridith’s Aunt Sophie had come for a visit. Leif began working 
nights. (?) 
 
The neighbor hood the family lived in was full of families with three and four children. Next door 
were Harry and Nettie Grissom, Earl and Sigga Wyman. On Brandt Street lived the Thorgaards, 
Burns, Andersons with children. Motchmanns lived on Driveway as did the Harters. On        lived 
the Kelly’s, Williams Ott and Crouder families. The Ghezzie, Korba and Mann families rounded 
out the area. The women of the area formed a sewing club in the early 1950’s. 
 
The next April Leif again went to Willow Creek to mine. Olga came up to Fairbanks to visit from 
Seattle and Meridith’s Aunt Elaine also came for visit. Leif returned to Fairbanks in October of 
1947. On April 13, 1948 the whole family went down to Willow Creek for the season.  They flew 
down with intermediary stops in McGrath and Bethel, then on to Marshall where they landed on 
the ice of the Yukon River. In late August Meridith, the girls and Larry took the riverboat 
“Nenana” back to Fairbanks.  Captain Adams piloted the boat.  They arrived in Fairbanks on 
September 1. 
Leif returned after cleanup in October. His mother Elise came for a short visit before returning to 
Seattle. In September Dianne started Kindergarten with Mrs. Ross. That November Dianne and 
Carol started Sunday school and the Fairbanks Lutheran Church.  
 
Again the whole family went to Willow Creek on April 25, 1949. After arriving at Marshall the 
family went to the mining camp at Willow Creek by dog sled. Charlie Fitka took them with his 
team of five dogs. Dianne lost her first and second teeth there on May 14 and 19. On August 21, 
1949 Meridith, the girls and Larry arrived in Fairbanks on the riverboat “Nenana”. Captain 
Adams was the pilot. Dianne started 1st grade with Mrs. Woolford. Leif and his Dad, Lars, 
arrived home in November. Lars continued on to Seattle after a short visit. On the eve of the 
New Year, 1950, Elaine and Harry Wood came for a visit. 
 
In May of 1950 Leif left for Movelock Creek Mining to work with Earl Wyman, Mac Fenton and 
Ed Ferrel.  This creek is near Tanana.  Cubby the family dog went with him. Also in May Carol 
lost her first lower tooth and swallowed it! In September Carol started Kindergarten with Mrs. 
Wien and Dianne started 2nd grade with Mrs. Nichols. Also in Septmeber Lars came for a visit 
then went on to Ketchikan to visit his daughter Eleanor and her husband Ozzie. In October Leif 
was home from Movelock Creek. Olga came to visit November 27, 1950. Leif was working for 
the U.S. Corp of Engineers.  Jeanne Emilia Ostnes was born on December 13, 1950 in St. 
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Joseph’s Hospital.  Dr. Schiable was the attending physician. Leif had bet Harry Riemer that this 
baby would be a boy and he had to pay up with a case of beer.  Harry had been over to the 
house to do some electrical work in the basement.  Meridith slipped on some wiring on the stairs 
and tumbled down.  Jeanne may have been expected on the 15th like the rest her siblings but 
the 13th would have to do.  
 
 

Courtesy of Steven Schwartz of Renton WA 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 



30 
 



31 
 



32 
 

 



33 
 

 
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:33SQ-GRPN-9WSN?mode=g&cc=1878898 

 
https://www.familysearch.org/tree/person/sources/LHN2-RH7 
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WA death record – cause of death: cerebral hemorrhage - 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HY-D1JQ-6JL?i=164 
 

 
Life: 
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“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 16 Jul 1911 p 8 

 

 
“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Saturday 3 Feb 1912 p 12 
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“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Saturday 7 Sep 1912 p 12 

 

 
For prohibition – “Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Tuesday 3 Dec 1912 p 12 
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“Tacoma (WA) News Tribune” Saturday 16 Jun 1917 p 3 

 

 
Walter is far from 40 years old! - “Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Wednesday 12 Dec 1917 p 10 
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“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 24 Mar 1918 p 12 

 

 
“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 9 Mar 1919 p 6  
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Enlisted at age 40 – discharged at age 60 - ?? – jumped ship in San Francisco CA & ended up in 

Winlock WA because that’s where his money ran out -  “Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Saturday 14 
Jun 1919 p 3 
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“Tacoma (WA) News-Tribune” Saturday 6 Dec 1919 p 5 

 

 
“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Tuesday 10 Feb 1920 p 8 

 

 
“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 15 Feb 1920 p 9 
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[article continues] 

 
“Tacoma (WA) News Tribune” Friday 3 Sep 1920 p 7 
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"Spokane (WA) Semi-Weekly Spokesman-Review" Thursday 2 Jun 1921 p 5 - Three men 
were seriously injured in a riot in Seattle WA 2 Jun 1921 when marine strike sympathizers 
assaulted 3 crew members of the steamer "West Jappa" as they were leaving the ship. 
Walter Toy, age 60, of Winlock WA, a blacksmith on the "West Jappa," had a skull 
fractured, possible concussion of the brain & knife wounds. The 3 men were attacked as 
they climbed the stairway to 1st Ave. at Seneca St. A riot call produced a squad of police 
who arrested most of the attackers. The "West Jappa" had arrived in port 12 May 1921, 
signed a non-union crew & was to sail 7 Jun 1921 for Japanese lead pencil factories.  
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“Seattle (WA) Star” Thursday 2 Jun 1921 p 7 
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“Albany (OR) Democrat Herald" Friday 3 Jun 1921 p 4 

 

 
“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 4 Sep 1921 p 4 
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“Tacoma (WA) News Tribune” Monday 21 Nov 1921 p 5 
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“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Friday 3 Feb 1922 p 10 

 

 
“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 12 Feb 1922 p 10 
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“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Saturday 20 May 1922 p 3 
 
 

 
 
 

Wife: 
 
 

 
4 generations – left to right: Sarah Emmaline Snow Toy (Walter’s wife), Edith Toy Custer (Walter’s 

daughter), Walter Edward Custer (child standing on chair is Walter’s grandson, the son of his 
daughter Edith Toy Custer, b. 25 Mar 1912 WA, d. 28 Dec 1992 WA, F: 101046946) & Margaret 

Laymance Snow (Sarah’s mother, Walter’s mother-in-law) - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482457/media/500e7e09-63a9-45aa-bbcd-0071b4603e92 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482457/media/500e7e09-63a9-45aa-bbcd-0071b4603e92
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482457/media/500e7e09-63a9-45aa-bbcd-0071b4603e92
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Sarah Emmaline Snow Toy, in 1889 - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-

viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1209568755/media/73d0ee14-885e-4447-8107-
c63ab3da1f81 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1209568755/media/73d0ee14-885e-4447-8107-c63ab3da1f81
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1209568755/media/73d0ee14-885e-4447-8107-c63ab3da1f81
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1209568755/media/73d0ee14-885e-4447-8107-c63ab3da1f81
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Sarah Emmaline Snow Toy (smock dress at left, pregnant with son Charles, born 2 Apr 

1910) & 4 of her 9 children – standing at back right is Edith Irene (b. 1890), boy with hat at 
front left is Thomas Allen (b. 1904), little girl in middle front is Cassie Viola (b. 1908) & girl in 

front at right is Edna Ozella (b. 1899) - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/collection/1030/tree/9523537/person/6987167830/media/4e0bbc4d-97df-403a-

ade0-6a6cc4316cfb?_phsrc=hFB62915&_phstart=successSource 
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“Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Saturday 27 Jan 1923 p 12 
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Will of Sarah Emmaline Snow Toy - https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/1231828:9086 
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Marriage at home of Frank Miller 12 No 1889 in Lewis Co. WA - 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C9BF-
T2GK?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ2ZJ-FD1Z 

 
 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C9BF-T2GK?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ2ZJ-FD1Z
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C9BF-T2GK?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ2ZJ-FD1Z
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Obituary of wife Sarah Emmaline Snow Toy – the “three sisters” mentioned are in reality 

her three daughters - "Chehalis (WA) Bee-Nugget" Friday 29 Oct 1923 p 2 - 
https://www.newspapers.com/image/21514533/  

 
Children: 
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Daughter Edith Irene Toy Custer Taylor (1890-1970) 
ca. 1926 - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-

viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482464/media/2dfac2cd-03d0-44c1-815a-
6671a8bf0d36 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482464/media/2dfac2cd-03d0-44c1-815a-6671a8bf0d36
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482464/media/2dfac2cd-03d0-44c1-815a-6671a8bf0d36
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/90066462/person/302093482464/media/2dfac2cd-03d0-44c1-815a-6671a8bf0d36
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TX death record of Edith Irene Toy Custer Taylor - 

https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2272/images/33154_b062809-
01233?pId=1545625 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2272/images/33154_b062809-01233?pId=1545625
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2272/images/33154_b062809-01233?pId=1545625
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Marriage of Edith Irene Toy to Jack Daniel Custer 26 Apr 1911 Chehalis, Lewis WA - 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C9BP-99CL-
S?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ2ZJ-FTYM 

 
 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C9BP-99CL-S?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ2ZJ-FTYM
https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3Q9M-C9BP-99CL-S?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ2ZJ-FTYM
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Marriage of Edith Irene Toy Custer to Charles Alfred Taylor on 14 Nov 1944 in Clark Co. WA 

- https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QS7-L9XQ-
1BR?cc=1534448&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQPM6-SVVT 
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Obituary of Edith Irene Toy Custer Taylor – “The Columbian” (Vancouver WA) Thursday 20 

Aug 1970 p 2 
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Son Walter Toy Jr. (1893-1979) in 1947 – https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1208121524/media/d36cda1c-e5a6-4950-a8a9-

ecc388404487 
 
 

 

 
 

Joseph & sister Edith on the school honor roll – “Spokane (WA) Spokesman-Review” 
Sunday 11 Dec 1904 p 41 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1208121524/media/d36cda1c-e5a6-4950-a8a9-ecc388404487
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1208121524/media/d36cda1c-e5a6-4950-a8a9-ecc388404487
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/1237563/person/-1208121524/media/d36cda1c-e5a6-4950-a8a9-ecc388404487
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Walter Toy Jr., in 1976, at the Isaacson farm in Winlock WA - Find A Grave 81434429   

 

 
Walter Toy Jr., in the 1940s – Find A Grave 81434429 
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Walter Toy Jr. – enlisted in the US Army 1 May 1917, discharged 23 Feb 1919 Houston TX – 
Find A Grave 81434429 
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WA WWI military record of Walter Toy Jr. -  

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/281151:62272?tid=1237563&pid=-
1208121524&queryId=da87ebdc74658d7059902ae697162bc7&_phsrc=hFB62906&_phsta

rt=successSource 
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Son Joseph Toy (1895-1948) pictured with brother Walter Toy Jr. – who is who is not 

identified in caption - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597111/media/3757c1bf-792b-

431e-a2d5-e778e4a47343?_phsrc=hFB62907&_phstart=successSource 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597111/media/3757c1bf-792b-431e-a2d5-e778e4a47343?_phsrc=hFB62907&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597111/media/3757c1bf-792b-431e-a2d5-e778e4a47343?_phsrc=hFB62907&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597111/media/3757c1bf-792b-431e-a2d5-e778e4a47343?_phsrc=hFB62907&_phstart=successSource
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Joseph Toy – Find A Grave 14102700 

 
 

 

 
Joseph Toy – WA birth record - https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/282564:60230?tid=1237563&pid=-
1208122047&queryId=47a42ea4ce0984b0460254678de0a55c&_phsrc=hFB62909&_phsta

rt=successSource 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/282564:60230?tid=1237563&pid=-1208122047&queryId=47a42ea4ce0984b0460254678de0a55c&_phsrc=hFB62909&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/282564:60230?tid=1237563&pid=-1208122047&queryId=47a42ea4ce0984b0460254678de0a55c&_phsrc=hFB62909&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/282564:60230?tid=1237563&pid=-1208122047&queryId=47a42ea4ce0984b0460254678de0a55c&_phsrc=hFB62909&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/282564:60230?tid=1237563&pid=-1208122047&queryId=47a42ea4ce0984b0460254678de0a55c&_phsrc=hFB62909&_phstart=successSource
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WA birth record of Joseph Toy - https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-XC34-

4W9?cc=1463676&personaUrl=%2Fark%3A%2F61903%2F1%3A1%3AQ23Q-PRX7 
 

 
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/1172520:2375 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/1172520:2375
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WA death record of Henriett Alfred Jobst Toy - https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/1044036:1208?tid=13704043&pid=29116222925&queryId=1896ccaf2190ab
5227725d2a16ad27a6&_phsrc=hFB62911&_phstart=successSource 

 
 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/1044036:1208?tid=13704043&pid=29116222925&queryId=1896ccaf2190ab5227725d2a16ad27a6&_phsrc=hFB62911&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/1044036:1208?tid=13704043&pid=29116222925&queryId=1896ccaf2190ab5227725d2a16ad27a6&_phsrc=hFB62911&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/1044036:1208?tid=13704043&pid=29116222925&queryId=1896ccaf2190ab5227725d2a16ad27a6&_phsrc=hFB62911&_phstart=successSource
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Daughter Edna Ozella Toy Steinhart (1899-1968) with husband Fred W. Steinhart – Find A 
Grave 76595512 

 

fkit 
Obituary of daughter Edna Ozella Toy Steinhart (1899-1968) – “Kitsap (WA) Sun” Saturday 

18 May 1968 p 4 
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Marriage on 16 Aug 1917 in Montesano, Grays Harbor WA of Edna Ozella Toy & Fred  

Warren Steinhart - https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-
content/view/904605684:2378?tid=13704043&pid=29102147713&queryId=855485ef24f9a

ec0970a2483cab3b91d&_phsrc=hFB62914&_phstart=successSource 
 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/904605684:2378?tid=13704043&pid=29102147713&queryId=855485ef24f9aec0970a2483cab3b91d&_phsrc=hFB62914&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/904605684:2378?tid=13704043&pid=29102147713&queryId=855485ef24f9aec0970a2483cab3b91d&_phsrc=hFB62914&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/904605684:2378?tid=13704043&pid=29102147713&queryId=855485ef24f9aec0970a2483cab3b91d&_phsrc=hFB62914&_phstart=successSource
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https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/2477654:2378 

 
 

 
Daughter Margaret Emmeline Toy O’Ban Vanier (1902-1978) - 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/tree/13704043/person/29102147714/media/91fe4a2d-6079-4058-ae1f-

b9916d5ab779 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/13704043/person/29102147714/media/91fe4a2d-6079-4058-ae1f-b9916d5ab779
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/13704043/person/29102147714/media/91fe4a2d-6079-4058-ae1f-b9916d5ab779
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/13704043/person/29102147714/media/91fe4a2d-6079-4058-ae1f-b9916d5ab779
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Marriage of Robert Stephen O’Ban & Margaret Toy on 22 Jul 1922 in Olympia, Thurston WA - 

https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QS7-L9FT-JW17?cc=1534448 
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Obituary of Margaret Emmeline Toy O’Ban Vanier – “The Olympian” (Olympia WA) Thursday 

7 Dec 1978 p 7 
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Marriage of Margaret Emmeline Toy O’Ban to Henry Joseph Vanier on 5 Jul 1973 in Thurston 

Co. WA - 
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2378/images/45654_B281526-

00413?pId=905768148 
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WWII draft registration of son Thomas Allen Toy (1904-1979) on 14 Feb 1942  - 
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/37234636:2238?tid=76541941&pid=32350557733&queryId=3f66ac565bc4e
996f48f558d0f9dac86&_phsrc=hFB62920&_phstart=successSource 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/37234636:2238?tid=76541941&pid=32350557733&queryId=3f66ac565bc4e996f48f558d0f9dac86&_phsrc=hFB62920&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/37234636:2238?tid=76541941&pid=32350557733&queryId=3f66ac565bc4e996f48f558d0f9dac86&_phsrc=hFB62920&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/37234636:2238?tid=76541941&pid=32350557733&queryId=3f66ac565bc4e996f48f558d0f9dac86&_phsrc=hFB62920&_phstart=successSource
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https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/862276:6716?tid=76541941&pid=32350557733&queryId=3f66ac565bc4e99
6f48f558d0f9dac86&_phsrc=hFB62921&_phstart=successSource 
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Marriage of Thomas Allen Toy on 16 Jun 1936 in Whatcom Co. WA to Queenie Esther Clark 

Pitcher - 
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2378/images/33625860_710bebc2-

37c9-43ef-8801-632044ca8880?pId=4132300 
 

 
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/76541941/person/32350557733/facts 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2378/images/33625860_710bebc2-37c9-43ef-8801-632044ca8880?pId=4132300
https://www.ancestry.com/imageviewer/collections/2378/images/33625860_710bebc2-37c9-43ef-8801-632044ca8880?pId=4132300
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/76541941/person/32350557733/facts
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https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-

viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597112/media/2567098f-1047-
45a4-8ac9-3e8e8a7a1a88?_phsrc=hFB62922&_phstart=successSource 

 

 
https://www.ancestry.com/family-tree/person/tree/76541941/person/32350557733/facts 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597112/media/2567098f-1047-45a4-8ac9-3e8e8a7a1a88?_phsrc=hFB62922&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597112/media/2567098f-1047-45a4-8ac9-3e8e8a7a1a88?_phsrc=hFB62922&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597112/media/2567098f-1047-45a4-8ac9-3e8e8a7a1a88?_phsrc=hFB62922&_phstart=successSource
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Daughter Cassie Viola Toy (1908-1921) - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-

viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557737/media/6ef8ddd2-b275-4d40-8dc9-
50a5f2040bff 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557737/media/6ef8ddd2-b275-4d40-8dc9-50a5f2040bff
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557737/media/6ef8ddd2-b275-4d40-8dc9-50a5f2040bff
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557737/media/6ef8ddd2-b275-4d40-8dc9-50a5f2040bff
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Cassie Viola Toy (at right) with younger brother Charles Winfred Toy (at left) - 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597116/media/fa825756-9902-

41bb-ba59-62f930dad6a2?_phsrc=hFB62927&_phstart=successSource 
 
 
 
 

 

 
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/231995:1209 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597116/media/fa825756-9902-41bb-ba59-62f930dad6a2?_phsrc=hFB62927&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597116/media/fa825756-9902-41bb-ba59-62f930dad6a2?_phsrc=hFB62927&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/105950426/person/100049597116/media/fa825756-9902-41bb-ba59-62f930dad6a2?_phsrc=hFB62927&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/231995:1209
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Died in diphtheria epidemic – “Tacoma (WA) Daily Ledger” Sunday 26 Jun 1921 p 11 
 
 
 

 
WA death record of Cassie Viola Toy - https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-

DBY9-BMX?i=699 



86 
 

 
 
 

 
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/340497:1208?ssrc=pt&tid=76541941&pid=32350557737 
 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/340497:1208?ssrc=pt&tid=76541941&pid=32350557737
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/340497:1208?ssrc=pt&tid=76541941&pid=32350557737
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Son Charles Wilfred Toy (1910-1984), ca. 1910 – baby (born 2 Apr 1910) seated on the lap 

of his father Walter Toy, pictured with mother Sarah Emmaline Snow at left & sister Cassie 
Viola Toy (1908-1921) - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-

viewer/collection/1030/tree/9523537/person/6987422671/media/53836c8c-2bc5-4f70-
80ae-e4a6258c5191?_phsrc=hFB62926&_phstart=successSource 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/9523537/person/6987422671/media/53836c8c-2bc5-4f70-80ae-e4a6258c5191?_phsrc=hFB62926&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/9523537/person/6987422671/media/53836c8c-2bc5-4f70-80ae-e4a6258c5191?_phsrc=hFB62926&_phstart=successSource
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/collection/1030/tree/9523537/person/6987422671/media/53836c8c-2bc5-4f70-80ae-e4a6258c5191?_phsrc=hFB62926&_phstart=successSource
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https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/63041105:3693?ssrc=pt&tid=76541941&pid=32350557735 
 

https://www.familysearch.org/tree/person/sources/LHN2-RH7 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/63041105:3693?ssrc=pt&tid=76541941&pid=32350557735
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/63041105:3693?ssrc=pt&tid=76541941&pid=32350557735
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Marriage of Charles Toy to Lillian McLeod = https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-

content/view/895464:2378 
 

 
Marriage license – “Seattle (WA) Star” Thursday 24 Jul 1941 p 11 

 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/895464:2378
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/895464:2378
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https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/22712819:60901 

 

 
https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/827036:5254 

 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/827036:5254
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WWII draft registration of Charles Wilfred Toy on 16 Feb 1940  - 

https://www.ancestry.com/discoveryui-content/view/37234622:2238 
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Son James Norman Toy (1913-1968) - https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-
viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557734/media/f124bc66-313a-4837-a576-

b892f2ebef95 
 

 
WA birth record of James Norman Toy - 

https://www.familysearch.org/tree/person/sources/LHN2-RH7 
 

https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557734/media/f124bc66-313a-4837-a576-b892f2ebef95
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557734/media/f124bc66-313a-4837-a576-b892f2ebef95
https://www.ancestry.com/mediaui-viewer/tree/76541941/person/32350557734/media/f124bc66-313a-4837-a576-b892f2ebef95
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Obituary of James Norman Toy – “Montana Standard” (Butte MT) Wednesday 4 Sep 1968 p 6 

 
 
 
 
 

Siblings: 
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Marriage of sister Jane Toy to Richard Benjamin Cock – “West Briton & Cornwall Advertiser” 

(Truro, Cornwall, England) - Thursday 30 Aug 1883 p 5 -  
https://www.newspapers.com/image/863897884/ 

 
 



96 
 

 
Cornwall, England – hometown of Budock Water - 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Budock_Water 
    

 
Name:  Walter Toy (Sr.) 

 
 

Abbreviations: 
b = born 
d = died 

F: = Find A Grave (www.findagrave.org) 
NOK = next-of-kin 
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Name:  Walter Toy (Sr.) 
Name variations:    
Military: 
On Tuscania: 20th Eng. 16th/Co. D - private 
Serial number:  250,423 
Entered service from:  Winlock, Lewis WA 
Sailed on “Tuscania” as:  Walter Toy 
Next-of-kin on “Tuscania”: wife Sarah E. Toy, Winlock WA (abbreviated as WN) 
Returned from war on: "Santa Paula" May 1919 
Sailed on return ship as: Walter Toy  
Next-of-kin on return ship & rank: wife Mrs. Sarah Toy, Winlock WA (cook, 16th Co., 20th 
Engrs, Forestry) 
World War I draft registration (1917): beyond the age to register for the draft 
National Tuscania Survivors Association (1939): Winlock WA 
 
Veterans Administration Military Index:  birthdate of 1 Jan 1878 
Enlisted:  13 Dec 1917 
Discharged:  12 Jun 1919 
Address:  Winlock WA 
Rank/unit:    cook, 16th Co., 20th Engineers 
 
Birth & death: 
Born:  1 Jan 1862 Falmouth, Cornwall, England (WWI draft & tombstone) - or 1 Jan 1863 
Budock, England (granddaughter) – or 1 Jan 1878 (Veterans Administration Military Index) – 
or 15 Mar 1863 Budock, Cornwall, England (England birth record)  
Died:  22 Oct 1926 Winlock, Lewis WA   
Find A Grave record: 14102702 – presence on Tuscania indicated in text  
Burial location:  Winlock, Lewis WA 
Cemetery:  Winlock 
Tombstone: veteran flat: Washington Cook 20 Engrs WWI  
 
Father:  Walter Toy, 22 Dec 1821 Budock, Cornwall, England – 18 Apr 1915 Mawnan, 
Cornwall, England. 
Find A Grave:   
 
Mother: Sally Cosier Toy, 1822 Penryn, Cornwall, England – Apr 1908 Falmouth, Cornwall, 
England. 
Find A Grave:   
Parents’ marriage:   
 
Spouse: Sarah Emmaline Snow Toy, 24 Dec 1867 TN – 30 Sep 1923 Seattle, King WA. 
Daughter of Joseph H. Snow & Margaret Elizabeth LaMance/Laymance. 
Mother of 9 children. 
Buried in Winlock Cemetery, Winlock, Lewis WA. 
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Spouse Find A Grave:  14102698 
Marriage: 12 Nov 1899 Winlock, Lewis WA, in the home of Frank Miller – the day after 
Washington Territory became a US state 
 
Children: 

• Edna Irene Toy Custer Taylor, 14 Nov 1890 Winlock, Lewis WA – 19 Aug 1970 San Angelo, 
Tom Green Co. TX (at the Colonial Nursing Home). SSN 539-05-3788. On 26 Apr 1911 in 
Chehalis, Lewis WA, Edna married Joseph Daniel Custer (b. 1 Jul 1887 Cape Breton, Nova 
Scotia, Canada, d. 1985; served in the Canadian Army in WWI). When he registered for the 
WWII draft on 25 Apr 1942, Joseph lived in Room 5, Union Station, Tacoma WA & worked for 
the Northern Pacific Railroad. –  Listing her status as divorced, Edith Custer married on 14 
Nov 1944 in Clark Co. WA to Charles Arthur Taylor (1889-1959, F: 39428548). - Edna Taylor 
is buried in Park Hill Cemetery, Vancouver, Clark WA. F: 39428556 

• Walter Toy Jr., 8 May 1893 Winlock, Lewis WA – 23 Mar 1979 Susanville, Lassen CA. SSN 
539-20-9007. Enlisted in the US Army on 1 May 1917; discharged 23 Feb 1919. Married 30 
Nov 1920 in Seattle, King WA to Olga Emilija Isaacson (13 Jul 1900 Cloquet, Carlton MN – 22 
Feb 1920 Seattle, King WA). – Buried in Winlock Cemetery, Winlock, Lewis WA. F: 81434429 

• Joseph Toy, 17 Aug 1895 Winlock, Lewis WA – 14 Mar 1948 Winlock, Lewis WA. SSN 537-03-
3113. Served as a musician 3rd class, 166th Depot Brigade, in WWI. Married Henrietta Alfred 
M. Jobst (1904-1958), the daughter of Henry Conrad Jobst & Frances Bloom. Her tombstone 
at F: 14102699 is inscribed “Alfreda.” – In the 1940 census for Winlock, Lewis WA, Joe Toy 
(43 WA, an automobile mechanic at a garage) lived with wife Alfreda (36 MI).  Buried in 
Winlock Cemetery, Winlock, Lewis WA. F: 14102700 

• Edna Ozella Toy Steinhart, 20 Oct 1899 Winlock, Lewis WA – 17 May 1968 Bremerton, 
Kitsap WA. Married 16 Aug 1917 in Montesano, Grays Harbor WA to Fred Warren Steinhart 
(6 Sep 1891 Bucoda WA – 23 Feb 1967 Bremerton, Kitsap WA, F: 76595544), son of Alben & 
Marie Steinhart/Steinheart. – Buried in Winlock Cemetery, Winlock, Lewis WA. F; 76595512 

• Margaret Emmeline/Emmaline Toy O’Ban Vanier, 24 Apr 1902 Winlock, Lewis WA – 7 Dec 
1978 Olympia, Thurston WA. Married to Robert Stephen O’Ban (1902-1966, F: 102985574) 
on 22 Jul 1922 in Olympia, Thurston WA.. –  In the 1930 census Robert S. O’Ban (27 WA, 
parents b. Austria, storekeeper, pulp factory) lived in Tacoma, Pierce WA with wife Margaret 
E. (27 WA, father b. England, mother b. TN). Both said they had married for the 1st time at 
age 20. – In the 1940 census, the couple lived in Olympia, Thurston WA with 6-year-old 
daughter Mary Jane. - Married to Henry Joseph Vanier (1 Mar 1907 NY – 19 May 1990 WA, F: 
183457629) on 5 Jul 1973 in Thurston Co. WA. – Margaret is buried with an O’Ban 
tombstone in Mills & Mills Memorial Park, Tumwater, Thurston WA. F: 124398517 

• Thomas Allen Toy, 5 May 1904 Winlock, Lewis WA – 26 Mar 1979 Randle, Lewis WA. Some 
family trees give death date of 25 Mar 1979. One researcher said Tom shot himself & his 
dogs after being charged with a DWI (driving while intoxicated). Married Queenie Esther 
Clark Pitcher on 16 Jun 1936 in Whatcom Co. WA. Queenie Clark had earlier married Arthur 
Marion Pitcher on 21 Oct 1933 in Thurston Co. CA. – According to the funeral card, Thomas 
is buried in Rainey Valley Cemetery, Glenoma, Lewis WA but is not on Find A Grave as of 1 
Apr 2023.  

• Cassie Viola Toy, 6 Apr 1908 Lewis Co. WA – 11 Jun 1921 Winlock, Lewis WA. The only 
casualty of a diphtheria epidemic in Winlock WA. Buried in Winlock Cemetery, Winlock, 
Lewis WA. F; 14102703 
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• Charles Wilfred Toy, 2 Apr 1910 Winlock, Lewis WA – 5 Jul 1984 Klamath Co. OR. SSN 549-
20-6915. Middle name sometimes found as Winfred or Winifred, but is Wilfred on his WWII 
draft registration. Married Lillian Thelma McLeod on 26 Jul 1941. Lillian (“Babe”) (1919-
2004) was the daughter of William Henry McLeod & Minnie Almira Cripe. She is buried as 
Lillian Kelso in Winlock Cemetery, Winlock, Lewis WA. – Last residence according to Social 
Security records was Susanville, Lassen CA. - Charles is buried in Alturas Cemetery, 
Alturas, Modoc CA. F: 145795837 

• James Norman Toy, 28 May 1913 Winlock, Lewis WA – 2 Sep 1968 Maxville, Granite MT. – 
Married 4 Nov 1944 in Fairbanks, Fairbanks AK to Ann/Anna Frances Rieves Westman (2 
Sep 1912 Arkansas Co. AR – 20 Jun 1955 Drummond, Granite MT, F: 192114710), the 
daughter of Earnest Howard Rieves & Anna Frances Abbott, who was earlier married to 
Howard Earl Westman (1914 CO – 1992 MS, obituary in Biloxi MS ‘Sun Herald’ of Monday 6 
Jan 1992 p 2), on 30 Oct 1938 in Alameda Co. CA. – In 1958, James married Ruth Dunlap 
Spunich (1920 MN – 2012 MT, F: 118241869). Ruth had married Karl Henry Spunich (1908-
1953) on 18 Oct 1934 in Wayne Co. MI & divorced him 10 Mar 1943 in Wayne Co. MI). – 
James is buried in Hillcrest Cemetery, Deer Lodge, Powell MT. F: 192114857 
 

Siblings:  
• William Henry Toy, 28 Jan 1851 Pedegoe, Cornwall, England – Nov 1916 Chile. Married 28 

Mar 1881 in Budock, Cornwall, England, to Mary Ann Willis Rawes (1851-1932). 
• Faith Cosier Toy Chapman, Apr 1853 Budock, Cornwall, England – Mar 1939 Falmouth, 

Cornwall, England. Married 7 Sep 1872 in Budock, Cornwall, England, to Robert Henry 
Chapman (b. 1851). 

• Caroline Toy Cantelin, Apr 1856 Budock, Cornwall, England – 1915. Wife of John Henry 
Cantelin (1849-1916, F: 128964470) whom she married 22 Mar 1873 in Budock, Cornwall, 
England. In the 1915 Rhode Island state census, the couple resided in Hopkinton, 
Washington Co. RI.  Caroline is buried in First Hopkinton Cemetery, Hopkington, 
Washington Co. RI. F: 128964469 

• Charles Toy, 1860 Budock, Cornwall, England – Mar 1941 Southampton, Hampshire, 
England. 

• Jane Cosier Toy Cock, 5 Apr 1865 Budock, Cornwall, England – Aug 1915 Landewednack, 
Cornwall, England. Married 18 Aug 1883 Budock, Cornwall, England, to Richard Benjamin 
Cook (1855-1929).  

• Emily Toy, 1868 Budock, Cornwall, England – 3 Mar 1877 Budock, Cornwall, England.  
 
Notes:  
 
Family tree at: https://www.ancestry.com/family-
tree/person/tree/90066462/person/302093192650/facts 
 
 
Pre-war: 
 
Wartime: 
 
Post-war: 
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Obituary: 
 
Social Security number:  
 
Censuses: 
 
1900 Ainslie, Lewis WA – name indexed as JAY but is overwritten & can be read as TOY 
Walter Toy, 37 England, Jan 1863, parents b. England, married 11 years, emigrated 1888, in 
US for 12 years, naturalized, blacksmith 
Sarah E., 32 TN, Dec 1867, parents b. TN, gave birth to 4 children, 4 are living 
Edith I., 9 WA, Nov 1890, at school 
Walter, 7 WA, May 1893, at school 
Joseph, 4 WA, Aug 1895 
Edna O., 7 months WA, Oct 1899 
 
1910 Winlock, Lewis WA – conducted 21 Apr 1910 
Walter Toy, 49 England, parents b. England, in 1st marriage, married 20 years, emigrated 
1888, naturalized, blacksmith, own shop 
Sarah, 44 TN, parents b. TN, in 1st marriage, gave birth to 8 children, 8 are living 
Edith, 19 WA 
Walter, 16 WA, apprentice, blacksmith shop 
Joseph, 14 WA 
Edna, 9 WA 
Margarite E., 7 WA 
Thomas, 5 WA 
Viola, 2 WA 
Charlie, zero months WA 
 
1920 Winlock, Lewis WA 
Walter Toy, 58 England, parents b. England, emigrated 1888, naturalized 1900, blacksmith, 
shop 
Sarah, 53 TN, parents b. TN 
Walter, 26 WA, blacksmith, shop 
Joseph, 24 WA, mechanic [spelled “mecanic”], garage 
Margaret, 17 WA, assistant postmaster, Post Office 
Thomas, 15 WA 
Viola, 11 WA 
Charles, 9 WA 
James, 6 WA 
 
 
 


